
McDuffie County Board of Commissioners 
Regular Commission Meeting AGENDA

Tuesday Evening, October 17, 2023, 6:30 pm 
Government Center Meeting Room 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. FY23 Budget Hearing

2. Consideration to approve the rezoning of property at 5538 Lincolnton Highway (Parcel 00360003),
from residential use to commercial use.

3. Consideration to approve a variance of the distance requirements within O.C.G.A. § 16-12-215 to
allow Barney’s Pharmacy to dispense medical cannabis less than 1,000 feet from a church, 1682
Washington Road, Parcel Number 0T080071)

WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER   Chairman Newton 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PUBLIC INPUT 

APPROVALS 
   Agenda Current 
   Minutes Work Session, October 2, 2023 

Regular Meeting, October 4, 2023 

INFORMATION & ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 Camellia City Festival and Pink Ribbon Walk | Saturday, October 21st | 10am-5pm | Depot
 Trunk or Treat 2023 | Tuesday, October 31st | 5 pm – 8 pm | McDuffie County Sheriff’s Office
 ACCG Fall Regional Meeting | Augusta | November 6th
 ACCG 2023 Winter Board of Managers | December 7th and 8th |Legacy Lodge Hotel, Lake Lanier Islands

APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT 
OLD BUSINESS   

NEW BUSINESS 

1) Consideration to Approve ARPA Broadband Administrative Agreement.
2) Consideration to Approve Request for Qualifications for Design of Amphitheater and Park.
3) Consideration to Approve Proclamation stating November 4th as Georgia Military Veterans’ Hall of Fame, Inc. Day
4) Consideration to Approve Resolution 23-16 Urging the Governor and General Assembly of Georgia to Continue

Efforts to Reform and Improve Mental Health Services for the Citizens of Georgia
5) Consideration to approve the rezoning of property at 5538 Lincolnton Highway (Parcel 00360003),

from residential use to commercial use.
6) Consideration to approve a variance of the distance requirements within O.C.G.A. § 16-12-215 to

allow Barney’s Pharmacy to dispense medical cannabis less than 1,000 feet from a church, 1682
Washington Road, Parcel Number 0T080071)

7) Monthly Budget Report
8) Monthly Financial Report

ADJOURNMENT 



McDuffie County Board of Commissioners 
Commissioners Work Session 

MINUTES 
Monday Evening, October 2, 2023, 6:30 pm 

Government Center Meeting Room 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: COUNTY REPRESENTATION: 
Charlie Newton, Chairman David Crawley, County Manager 
Sammie Wilson, Vice Chairman Pam Workman, Finance Director 
Gloria Thompson, Commissioner Carrie R Edwards, County Clerk 
Wm. “Bill” M. Jopling, Commissioner Ruthie Thomas, HR 

Director Media: McDuffie Progress 

COMMISSIONERS’ WORK SESSION  

All agenda items are for discussion only. No action was taken during the meeting. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
1) Reappointment of David Holt to Tax Assessor Board and Appointment of Stephanie Walker to CSRA

EOA Board.

County Manager Crawley presented to the board the appointments. This item will be added to the next 
agenda meeting.  

2) Consideration Concerning a Determination to Abandon portions of Ferrous Road no longer utilized
by the General Public.

County Manager Crawley provided the board historical perspective, along with the current information on 
the abandonment of Ferrous Road. The most concerns stem from public safety. Chief Sewell was to 
determine how much longer it would take for emergency personnel to respond if a section of the road 
was closed. This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 

3) Consideration to Enter Contract with CSRA Regional Commission for the for Administration of Paul
Bruhn Subgrant Program for DTRP and Enter into Agreement with the CSRA RC to Assure Effective
Management of the Project.

County Manager Crawley presented to the board a contract agreement, for the administrative costs of the 
Paul Bruhn Subgrant Program for Downtown Redevelopment, be awarded to CSRA Regional Commission. 
This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 

4) Consideration to Adopt Resolution 23-14, to Temporarily Suspend the Issuance of Alcoholic
Beverage Licenses within McDuffie County, Georgia and for Other Purposes.

County Manager Crawley presented to the board a resolution to temporarily suspend the issuance of 
alcohol license within the county. The discussion was to modify to exclude one day-temporary license 
for special events. This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 

5) Consideration to Approve UniFirst Customer Service Agreement.



McDuffie County Board of Commissioners 
Commissioners Work Session 

MINUTES 
Monday Evening, October 2, 2023, 6:30 pm 

Government Center Meeting Room 

County Manager Crawley presented a renewal contract for UniFirst for the Roads Department. This item 
will be added to the next meeting agenda. 

6) Consideration to Approve Meritain Administrative Services Agreement.

County Manager Crawley presented an Administrative Services Agreement for Meritain insurance. This 
item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 

7) Consideration Concerning the Purchase of CivicPlus Management and Meeting software for
McDuffie County.

County Clerk Carrie Edwards presented CivicPlus Management and Meeting software for consideration 
to streamline multi-level county communication. This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 

8) Consideration Concerning Purchase of Cameras for Animal Services at the Animal Shelter.

County Manager Crawley presented purchase of Animal Services cameras for the Animal Shelter. This 
item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 

9) Presentation of Schedule of Fees.

Finance Director Pam Workman presented the schedule of fees. This item will be added to the next 
meeting agenda. 

10) Presentation of 2024 Proposed Budget.

County Manager Crawley and Finance Director Pam Workman presented the 2024 Proposed Budget. This 
item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 

11) Presentation of September ACO Report.

County Manager Crawley presented the ACO Report. This item will be added to the next meeting 
agenda. 

ADJOURNMENT 

MCDUFFIE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

ATTEST: 
Charles G. Newton, IV, Chairman Carrie R Edwards, County Clerk 



McDuffie County Board of Commissioners 
Regular Commission Meeting 

MINUTES 
Regular Session, Wednesday 4, 2023, 10:00 am 

Government Center Meeting Room 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  
Charlie G Newton, Chairman 
Frederick Favors, Commissioner 
William “Bill” Jopling, Commissioner 
Gloria Thompson, Commissioner  

MEDIA: McDuffie Progress 
Members of the Public  

COUNTY REPRESENTATION: 
David Crawley, County Manager 

Carrie Edwards, County Clerk 
Pam Workman, Finance Director 

Jason Smith, Community Development Director 
Stephen Sewell, Fire/EMC Chief 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Chairman Newton opened the public hearing at 10 am.  

1. Consideration Concerning a Determination to Abandon portions of Ferrous Road no longer utilized by
the General Public.

Chairman Newton turned it over to County Manager Crawley to provide details on the consideration to 
abandon Ferrous Road. Short discussion ensued and the floor was opened to John Thomas, with GIW, and 
members of the public.  

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Newton called the meeting to order, acknowledged quorum of commissioners’ present and welcomed 
everyone in attendance.  

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Favors offered invocation followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

APPROVALS 
   Agenda Current 
   Minutes Regular Meeting- September 19, 2023 

Chairman Newton asked if there were any corrections to the current agenda or minutes. 

With no corrections, Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the agenda. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Jopling. The motion carried unanimously.  

Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the minutes. The motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Jopling. The motion carried unanimously.  

INFORMATION & ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Chairman Newton presented Information and Announcements. 

 ACCG Legislative Conference: October 10th – 13th, Jekyll Island



McDuffie County Board of Commissioners 
Regular Commission Meeting 

MINUTES 
Regular Session, Wednesday 4, 2023, 10:00 am 

Government Center Meeting Room 

 Camellia City Festival and Pink Ribbon One Mile Walk, Saturday, October 21, 2023
 ACCG Lifelong Learning Academy November 2023 Leadership Institute November 16-17, 2023

APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT 

 Reappointment of David Holt to Tax Assessor Board – See Resolution 23-15.
 Appointment of Stephanie Walker to CSRA EOA Board

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion the Appointment and Re-Appointment of Stephanie Walker to 
CSRA EOA Board and David Holt to Tax Assessor Board.  

Commissioner Favors made the motion to approve. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Thompson. The 
motion carried unanimously.  

OLD BUSINESS – None 

NEW BUSINESS 

1) Consideration Concerning a Determination to Abandon portions of Ferrous Road no longer utilized
by the General Public.

After discussion regarding the residents on Ferrous Road and GIW concern on safety for all, Commissioner 
Thompson suggested the board look into alternatives to closing the road.  

Chairman Newton opened the floor for motion. Commissioner Favors denied the consideration to 
abandon portions of Ferrous Road. Commissioner Thompson approved the motion. The motion carried 
unanimously. The board will look into alternatives to provide a solution for all parties involved.  

2) Consideration to Approve Resolution 23-15 to reappoint David Holt for Board of Assessors.

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. 

Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the resolution. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Jopling. The motion carried unanimously.  

3) Consideration to Approve Emergency repair through Utility Asset Management to Stagecoach and
Folly Lake.

County Manager Crawley and Chairman Newton provided details of emergency repair to Folly Lake. The 
repair quote came in at $26,698.00 with the county spending up to $20k out of TIA funds and the Folly 
Lake Community Residents paying the remaining amount of $6,698.00.  

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. 



McDuffie County Board of Commissioners 
Regular Commission Meeting 

MINUTES 
Regular Session, Wednesday 4, 2023, 10:00 am 

Government Center Meeting Room 

Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the recommendations and repair. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Jopling. The motion carried unanimously.  

4) Consideration to Enter Contract with CSRA Regional Commission for the for Administration of Paul
Bruhn Subgrant Program for DTRP and Enter into Agreement with the CSRA RC to Assure Effective
Management of the Project.

County Manager Crawley provided details on CSRA RC Administrative contract. 

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Favors made a motion to approve. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Thompson. The motion carried unanimously.  

5) Consideration to Adopt Resolution 23-14, to Temporarily Suspend the Issuance of Alcoholic
Beverage Licenses within McDuffie County, Georgia and for Other Purposes.

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Favors made a motion to approve. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Thompson. The motion carried unanimously.  

6) Consideration to Approve second reading to Amend the Fire Fee Ordinance to include Dearing as
part of the fire service area.

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve 
the amendment. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Jopling. The motion carried unanimously.  

7) Consideration to approve UniFirst Customer Service Agreement.

County Manager Crawley provided details of Customer Service Agreement for the Roads Department. 

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Jopling made the motion to approve the 
amendment. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Favors. The motion carried unanimously.  

8) Consideration to Approve Meritain Administrative Services Agreement.

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve 
the amendment. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Jopling. The motion carried unanimously.  

9) Consideration Concerning the Purchase of CivicPlus Management and Meeting software for
McDuffie County.

 County Clerk Carrie Edwards provided details of CivicPlus Management and Meeting software that will 
allow for streamline process and access of all open meetings within in the county.  

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Jopling made the motion to approve 
to approve the software. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Favors. The motion carried 
unanimously. 



McDuffie County Board of Commissioners 
Regular Commission Meeting 

MINUTES 
Regular Session, Wednesday 4, 2023, 10:00 am 

Government Center Meeting Room 

10) Consideration Concerning Purchase of Cameras for Animal Services at the Animal Shelter.

County Manager Crawley provided details of the camera quotes for the Animal Shelter. 

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made a motion to approve. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Favors. The motion carried unanimously.  

11) Consideration to Approve Fall Trash Amnesty Day

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion for Trash Amnesty Day to be held on Saturday, October 
28th. Commissioner Jopling made a motion to approve. The motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Favors. The motion carried unanimously.  

12) Presentation of Schedule of Fees.

The county presented Schedules of Fees. 

13) Presentation of 2024 Proposed Budget.

The county presented proposed budget and Public Hearings will be held on October 17th and November 
1st at the Regular Session meetings.  

14) Presentation of September ACO Report.

County Manager Crawley presented the ACO report. 

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Favors made a motion to approve. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Thompson. The motion carried unanimously. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Jopling made a motion to approve. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Thompson. The motion carried unanimously. Adjourned at 
10:30 am.  

MCDUFFIE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

_____________________________________ ATTEST: ______________________________ 
Charles G Newton, IV, Chairman           Carrie Edwards, County Clerk 

MCDUFFIE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 



STAFF REPORT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONER MEETING: October 17, 2023 

DATE: October 17, 2023  
TO: McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  
FROM: Carrie Edwards 
ISSUE: In consideration of the services rendered by the RC under the provisions of this contract, 

the CONTRACTOR shall compensate the RC with a fee of $80,000.00 

BACKGROUND:  The RC will perform as grant administrator of the ARPA funds for the McDuffie 
Broadband Project. The RC as grant administrator for the CONTRACTOR’s ARPA SFRF grant award will 
comply with and adhere to the applicable ARPA SFRF rules and regulations as set forth and referenced in 
the OPB website (as updated) to implement the grant.  The RC will also comply with and adhere to other 
directives issued by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Budget for ARPA SFRF pertaining to the 
CONTRACTOR’s grant award. 

FACTS AND FINDINGS: 

1. The RC shall advise and assist the CONTRACTOR with the following program functions in order to
assure full compliance with the OPB ARPA SFRF Program and Regulations:

• Program Management • Citizen Participation
• Acquisition and Easements • Labor Standards/Davis Bacon
• Procurement • Compliance with GA Local Government Public

Works Construction Requirements
• Reporting Requirements • Financial Management
• Close-out Requirements • Monitoring Liaison with OPB
• Language Access Plan • Equal Opportunity, Fair Housing Standards

2. Report regularly to the CONTRACTOR on the current status of the grant program both in terms 
of funding and activity and make such recommendations as are deemed necessary to the
continuous effective operation of the program.

3. Prepare required reports and assist in monitoring inspections, audits, and liaison with the
Office of Planning and Budget and such other agencies, entities and persons whose
involvement might be necessary for proper function of the program.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the approval of the request. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. CSRA RC Contractual Agreement



Contractual Agreement      Page 1 of 8 
ARPA SFRF GRANT  
Prepared: 10/10/2023 

CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT 
Between 

THE CENTRAL SAVANNAH RIVER AREA REGIONAL COMMISSION 
(hereafter referred to as “RC”) 

and  
MCDUFFIE COUNTY 

(hereafter referred to as “CONTRACTOR”) 

PROJECT NAME 
McDuffie Broadband Project 

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) STATE FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS (SFRF) 

For Official Use Only: 
Effective Date: Expiration Date: 

Upon the issuance of a Conditional Closeout by the 
Governor’s Office of Planning and Budget’s (OPB) 

Contract Number: 

WITNESSETH THAT: 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR has applied for and received a grant of funds from the United States of 
America providing for financial aid to the CONTRACTOR within 42 USC Chapter 7 via the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021, State Fiscal Recovery Funds Improving Neighborhood Outcomes in 
Disproportionately Impacted Communities Award; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Georgia’s allocation of ARPA SFRF program from the Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Budget (OPB) has awarded the CONTRACTOR the above-mentioned grant funds under the 
ARPA SFRF Program for purposes of construction of a fiber broadband network; and  

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR desires to engage the RC to render certain services related to the 
administration of the above described ARPA SFRF project; and  

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR desires to enter into an agreement with the RC as hereinafter provided 
to assure the effective management of the project; 

SECTION 1 – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The RC as grant administrator for the CONTRACTOR’s ARPA SFRF grant award will comply with and 
adhere to the applicable ARPA SFRF rules and regulations as set forth and referenced in the OPB website 
(as updated) to implement the grant.  The RC will also comply with and adhere to other directives issued 
by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Budget for ARPA SFRF pertaining to the CONTRACTOR’s 
grant award. 

1. The RC certifies that it has registered and does participate in the E-Verify program.

2. The RC, as grant administrator, will comply with and adhere to O.C.G.A.  §50-36-1(e) which states
that an agency or political subdivision providing or administering a public benefit shall require every
applicant for such benefit to execute a signed and sworn affidavit verifying the applicant’s lawful
presence in the United States.



Contractual Agreement      Page 2 of 8 
ARPA SFRF GRANT  
Prepared: 10/10/2023 

3. The RC shall advise and assist the CONTRACTOR with the following program functions in order to
assure full compliance with the OPB ARPA SFRF Program and Regulations:

• Program Management • Citizen Participation
• Acquisition and Easements • Labor Standards/Davis Bacon
• Procurement • Compliance with GA Local Government Public

Works Construction Requirements
• Reporting Requirements • Financial Management
• Close-out Requirements • Monitoring Liaison with OPB
• Language Access Plan • Equal Opportunity, Fair Housing Standards

4. Report regularly to the CONTRACTOR on the current status of the grant program both in
terms of funding and activity and make such recommendations as are deemed necessary to
the continuous effective operation of the program.

5. Prepare required reports and assist in monitoring inspections, audits, and liaison with the
Office of Planning and Budget and such other agencies, entities and persons whose
involvement might be necessary for proper function of the program.

SECTION 2 - COMPENSATION 

In consideration of the services rendered by the RC under the provisions of this contract, the 
CONTRACTOR shall compensate the RC with a fee of $80,000.00.  Said fee will cover the RC’s costs 
associated with the fulfillment of the obligations of this contract.  No legal, architectural, or engineering 
services shall be a part of this Contract. 

Compensation shall be made by the CONTRACTOR for services rendered by the RC within thirty (30) 
days after a statement shall have been received by the CONTRACTOR from the RC requesting such 
compensation. 

SECTION 3 - TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

If, through any cause, the RC shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligation under this 
agreement, or if the RC shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this agreement, 
the CONTRACTOR shall have the right to terminate this agreement by giving written notice to the RC of 
such termination and specifying the effective date thereof, at any time, at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
effective date of such termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished documents, data, or other 
materials as described in Section 1 - Scope of Work, shall become the property of the CONTRACTOR.  
The RC shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed 
and any outstanding obligations on such documents (calculated by adding the RC’s staff time, fringe 
benefits and indirect costs up to the end of the contract).  Also, the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to 
receive a pro-rated refund of payment for any work not completed at time of termination if such 
overpayment has been made. 



Contractual Agreement      Page 3 of 8 
ARPA SFRF GRANT  
Prepared: 10/10/2023 

SECTION 4 - TERMINATION FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR AND/OR 
RC 

If through any cause, either party shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under 
this agreement, or if the either party shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this 
agreement, either party shall have the right to terminate this agreement by giving written notice to said 
party such termination and specifying the effective date thereof, at any time, at least (30) days prior to the 
effective date of such termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished documents, data, or other 
materials as described in Section 1 – Scope of Work, shall become the property of the CONTRACTOR.  
The RC shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed 
and any outstanding obligations on such documents (calculated by adding the RC’s staff time, fringe 
benefits and indirect costs up to the end of the contract).  Also, the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to 
receive a pro-rated refund of payment for any work not completed at time of termination. 

SECTION 5 -- PROVISIONS FOR REMEDIES FOR BREACH OF CONTRACT 

Any violation or breach of contract terms shall cease this agreement and the RC shall be entitled to 
receive just and equitable compensation for any services satisfactorily performed and work completed. 

SECTION 6- COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS 

The RC, its officers, agents, employees, and subcontractors, in the performance of this 
Agreement shall comply with all applicable statutes and laws of the United States and the State 
of Georgia, and the applicable rules and regulations of the agencies of the United States and the 
State of Georgia.  The RC and the CONTRACTOR will adhere to all requirements referenced in 
the directives issued by State of Georgia Office of Planning and Budget for the State Fiscal 
Recovery Fund, Water and Sewer Infrastructure grant allocation as part of the American Rescue Plan of 
2021. 

SECTION 7 - SPECIAL PROVISIONS & EXHIBITS 

This contract is subject to the following special provisions and exhibits are attached to and made part of 
this contract: 

1) EEO Clause
2) Drug and Smoke-Free Workplace Free
3) Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act (GSICA)



Contractual Agreement      Page 4 of 8 
ARPA SFRF GRANT  
Prepared: 10/10/2023 

SECTION 9 - ACCEPTANCE OF CONTRACT AND TERMS 

This Agreement shall become effective with the signatures of the authorized parties and shall remain in 
effect until the Office of Planning and Budget issues a conditional closeout for the grant.  Any revisions 
to the deadline date for the completion of the work shall be mutually agreed upon in writing by both 
parties. This Agreement, entered into by and between the parties whose signatures appear below, 
representing their respective organizations. 

McDuffie County Board of Commissioners CSRA Regional Commission 

210 Railroad Street         3626 Walton Way Ext., Suite 1 
Thomson, GA 30824 Augusta, GA 30909 
706-595-2100 706-210-2000 

Charles G. Newton, Chairman Andy Crosson, Executive Director 

Date Date 

Witness  Witness 

EEO CLAUSE 



Contractual Agreement      Page 5 of 8 
ARPA SFRF GRANT  
Prepared: 10/10/2023 

During the performance of this contract, the RC agrees as follows: 

1. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of
race, color, religion, sex or national origin.  The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that
applicants are employed, and the employees are treated during employment without regard to their
race, color, religion, sex or national origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to the
following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising;
layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training,
including apprenticeship.  The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to
employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this
nondiscrimination clause.

2. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the
Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without
regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin.

3. The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising
the said labor union or workers' representative of the Contractor's commitments under this section,
and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for
employment.

4. The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and
of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

5. The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant
thereto, and will permit access to his books, records and accounts by the administering agency and the
Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations
and orders.

6. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the non-discrimination clauses of this contract or
with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated or
suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government
contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in
Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and
remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule,
regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

7. The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the
provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by
rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor
or vendor.  The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as
the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for
noncompliance.  Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the
administering agency the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to
protect the interests of the United States.



Contractual Agreement      Page 6 of 8 
ARPA SFRF GRANT  
Prepared: 10/10/2023 

DRUG AND SMOKE-FREE WORKPLACE 

The RC hereby certifies that it will not engage in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, possession, 
or use of a controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of this Agreement.  The RC may be 
suspended, terminated, or debarred if it is determined that: 

1. The RC has made false certification herein above; or
2. The RC has violated such certification by failure to carry out the requirements of Official Code of

Georgia 50-24-3.

GEORGIA SECURITY AND IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE ACT: E-VERIFY AND SAVE 
PROGRAM OVERVIEW 

I. Federal Work Authorization Program Registration

As of July 1,2007, the Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act (GSICA) requires counties and 
other public employers, along with contractors and subcontractors doing business with public agencies, to 
register and participate in a federal work authorization program to verify work eligibility of all new 
employees.  [OCGA § 13-10-91 (a)] 

Registration/Access.  According to regulations of the Georgia Department of Labor, the applicable federal 
work authorization program is the "E-Verify Program" operated by the U.S.  Citizenship and Immigration 
Services Bureau (USCIS) and the Department of Homeland Security (DHS).  An employer's participation 
in E-Verify is currently free to employers.  Users can access the web-based program at https://e-
verify.uscis.gov/enroll/StartPage.aspx?JS=YES.  To participate, an employer must register online and 
accept the electronic Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  If you need assistance in completing the 
registration process or need additional information relating to E-Verify, call the USCIS Verification 
Office toll free at 1-888-464-4218.  [Georgia Department a/Labor Rules, §§ 300-10-1-.01 and.02} 

Certification of Registration and Participation.  Each county and other public employer must certify that it 
has registered and in participating in the E-Verify Program.  For counties, certification is accomplished by 
transmitting a copy of all documents required for registration and participation including the required 
Memorandum of Understanding and the E-Verify Program ID number to the chairman/CEO/mayor of the 
county or consolidated government.  [Georgia Department a/Labor Rules, § 300-10-1-.  04} 

Monitoring New Employee Work Eligibility.  Each county and other pubic employer must designate an 
individual to monitor compliance with the employee eligibility verification requirements of the new law 
and maintain necessary records.  [Georgia Department a/Labor Rules, § 300-10-1-.05} 

II. Agreements between Public Employers and Contractors/Subcontractors

The GSICA also phases in a requirement that bars counties and other public employers from entering into 
agreements with contractors/subcontractors for the "physical performance of services" unless the 
contractor/subcontractor registers and participates in a federal work authorization program to verify work 
eligibility.  Under GSICA, a subcontractor is defined to include subcontractors, contract employees, 
staffing agencies, or contractors.  [OCGA § 13-10-91 (b) (1) and (2) and Georgia Department a/Labor 
Rules, § 300-10-1-.02] 

Phase-In Schedule.  The contracting requirements of the GSICA are to be implemented as follows: 
(a) Beginning July 1, 2007, public employers, contractors and subcontractors with 500 or more employees.
(b) Beginning July I, 2008, public employers, contractors and subcontractors with 100 or more employees.



Contractual Agreement      Page 7 of 8 
ARPA SFRF GRANT  
Prepared: 10/10/2023 

(c) Beginning July 1, 2009, all public employers, contractors and subcontractors.
[OCGA § 13-10-91 (b) (3) and Georgia Department a/Labor Rules, § 300-10-1- .02]

Evidence of Contractor/Subcontractor Compliance.  Each agreement between a public employer and a 
contractor/ subcontractor for the physical performance of services will have to include a provision that 
compliance with OCGA § 13- I0-91 is a condition of the contract.  In addition, each contact must include 
a requirement that the contactor/subcontractor execute an affidavit verifying compliance with OCGA § 
13- I091.  The affidavit must be in a form consistent with the sample affidavits included in the Georgia
Department of Labor Rules.  [Georgia Department a/Labor Rules, §§ 300-10-1-.03 and .07]

Public Transportation Contracts.  The Georgia Department of Labor Rules applies generally to contracts 
between a public employer and a contractor/subcontractor.  Exception: Rules and forms related to 
agreements relating to "public transportation" are to be promulgated by GDOT.  [OCGA § 13-10-91 (d)] 

III. Access to Federal, State and Local Benefits

Counties and other public agencies must verify that a person who applies for federal, state or local 
benefits (as defined in 8 U.S.C. Sections 161 I and 1621) is lawfully within the United States by requiring 
the applicant to sign an affidavit specifying that he or she is a citizen, legal permanent resident, or a 
qualified alien or nonimmigrant.  [OCGA § 50-36-1] 

Verification.  For aliens seeking benefits that claim to be lawfully present in the U.S., eligibility for 
benefits must be determined through the Systematic Alien Verification of Entitlement (SAVE) program 
operated by the U.S.  Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS) and Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS).  To join the SAVE Program and acquire access to the VIS-CPS (Verification 
Information System (VIS), Customer Processing System (CPS) to perform immigration status 
verification, an agency must first establish a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the SAVE 
Program, and then establish a purchase order with the SAVE Program contractor to pay for VIS-CPS 
transaction fees.  Access to SAVE is subject to USCIS resource limitations or other legal or policy 
criteria.  To request participation in SAVE and to begin the MOU process, please access the following 
website to register: https://www.vis- dhs.com/agency registration.  For more information on the SAVE 
Program, please call 1-888-464-4218. 

Public Benefits Defined.  Generally, public benefits are defined to include any grant, contract, loan, 
professional license, or commercial license provided by federal, state or local government; and, any 
retirement, welfare, health, disability, public or assisted housing, postsecondary education, food 
assistance, unemployment assistance or similar benefit.  [8 U.S.C.  Sections 1611 and 1621] 

Benefits Excluded.  Generally, the verification requirements do not apply when the following public 
benefits are applied for: 

(1) Treatment of emergency medical conditions;
(2) Short term, non-cash emergency disaster relief;
(3) Immunizations;
(4) Certain in-kind programs or services (such as soup kitchens and crisis counseling) delivered by

public and nonprofit agencies that are necessary for the protection of life or safety when approved
by the U.S.  Attorney General;

(5) Prenatal care;
(6) Postsecondary education under specified circumstances;
(7) Certain community development assistance or financial assistance programs administered by

HUD; and



Contractual Agreement      Page 8 of 8 
ARPA SFRF GRANT  
Prepared: 10/10/2023 

(8) Other Federal programs including certain social security and Medicare benefits under specified
conditions.  [OCGA § 50-36-1 (c) and 8 U.S.C.  Sections 1611 and 1621]

Note that it is unlawful for a county or other public agency to provide any federal, state or local benefit in 
violation of OCGA § 50-36-1.  An annual report is to be prepared regarding the requirements of the new 
law.  Regarding the details of the verification requirements, benefits covered, and exclusions please see 
the Federal statutes cited above. 



STAFF REPORT 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONER MEETING: October 17, 2023 

DATE: October 17, 2023  
TO: McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  
FROM: Carrie Edwards 
ISSUE: Consideration to Approve Request for Qualifications for Design of Amphitheater 

and Park.  

BACKGROUND: McDuffie County RFQ Summary with scorecard for the Design of the Amphitheater and 
Park. 

FACTS AND FINDINGS: 
1. A total of eight firms submitted RFQ’s for the project.
2. Firms scored by Distance, Recent Project Experience, Quality, Fees, Community Experience, and

Anticipated Timeline.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the approval of one firm. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
1. Excel spreadsheet for McDuffie County RFQ Summary with scorecard.



Firm Distance (mi) Recent Project Experience Quality Fees Community Experience Anticipated Timeline SCORE 
Cranston LLC 35 3 recreation projects ranging from $1-2M Included all required info 6.60% Direct 20 months 178
Wood & Partners (WP) 160 4 recreation projects ranging from $3.6-13.7M Missing contract and timetable 10% None - 125
TSW 121 7 recreation projects ranging from $750K-15.5M Included all required info 10% None 18 months 159
Robert and Company 119 2 recreation projects ($875k; $5.7M) Included all required info 7% None 24 months 141
Arcollab LLC 71 No recent, completed recreation projects listed. Included all required info 12% None 14 months 1 week 137
Johnson, Laschober, & Associates 35 1 recreation project ($4M) Included all required info 7.35% Indirect 24 months 159
2KM Architects, Inc. 35 No recent, completed recreation projects listed. Included all required info 10% Indirect 22 months 149
Root Design Studio LLC 117 2 recreation projects (application & $2.5M) Included all required info - None 22.5 months 138

McDuffie County – Improving Neighborhoods



STAFF REPORT 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONER MEETING: October 17, 2023 
 
DATE:  October 17, 2023  
TO:  McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  
FROM:  Carrie Edwards 
ISSUE:  Proclamation stating November 4th as the Georgia Military Veteran’s Hall of Fame, Inc. Day,  
  Recognizing and Honoring service men and women.  
 
BACKGROUND:  In 2013, the Georgia Military Veterans’ Hall of Fame, Inc. was established to honor and 
induct annually fifteen Georgians into the nation’s premiere military veterans’ hall of fame. 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS:  

1. Since the founding of Georgia in 1733, over 1,000,000 of its finest citizens have served in the 
military, to include active duty, reserves and National Guard;  

2. The patriotic men and women of McDuffie County have always served to ensure that McDuffie 
County, Georgia and America are defended and protected;  

3. Georgia currently has 678,304 living veterans of former service to America’s military branches. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends this proclamation.   

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Georgia Military Veteran’s Hall of Fame, Inc. Day, to Chairman Newton.  
2. Proclamation   















 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
GEORGIA MILITARY VETERANS’ HALL OF FAME, INC. DAY 

 
WHEREAS, since the founding of Georgia in 1733, over 1,000,000 of its finest citizens have served in the military, to 
include active duty, reserves and National Guard; and 
 
WHEREAS, the patriotic men and women of McDuffie County have always served to ensure that McDuffie County, 
Georgia and America are defended and protected; and 
 
WHEREAS, Georgia currently has 678,304 living veterans of former service to America’s military branches; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 2013, the Georgia Military Veterans’ Hall of Fame, Inc. was established to honor and induct annually 
fifteen Georgians into the nation’s premiere military veterans’ hall of fame; and 
 
WHEREAS, through 2023, 177 Georgians have been inducted, to include two from McDuffie County; and 
 
WHEREAS, since establishing an annual “ROTC Scholarship Program” in 2020, the Georgia Military Veterans’ Hall of 
Fame, Inc. has awarded thirty-nine $4000 scholarships to Georgia’s top thirty-nine senior high school JROTC 
Cadets, who are enrolled in the ROTC Program at a Georgia four-year university; and 
 
WHEREAS, we commend the Georgia Military Veterans’ Hall of Fame and the 177 inductees and encourage all 
citizens to educate themselves concerning this effort and get involved in nominating worth veterans; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved that the McDuffie County Board of Commissioners, to further recognize and 
honor this endeavor and inductees, do hereby proclaim Saturday, November 4, 2023 as the Georgia Military 
Veterans’ Hall of Fame Day. 
 
So proclaimed this the 4th day of November, 2023. 
 
 
    

     ____________________________________________ 
           Charlie G. Newton, Chairman 

              McDuffie County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

           Attest: _______________________________________  
                  Carrie R Edwards, McDuffie County Clerk  



STAFF REPORT 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONER MEETING: October 17, 2023 
 
DATE:  October 17, 2023  
TO:  McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  
FROM:  Carrie Edwards 
ISSUE:  Resolution Urging the Governor and General Assembly of Georgia To Continue    
  Efforts to Reform and Improve Mental Health Services for the Citizens of Georgia 
 
BACKGROUND: ACCG is strongly encouraging every county in the state to adopt a resolution urging the 
Governor and General Assembly to continue efforts to reform and improve mental health services for 
the citizens of Georgia. ACCG asks for this to be adopted by Friday, December 8, 2023, prior to the start 
of the 2024 legislative session.  
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS:  

1. In recent years, ACCG and Georgia’s counties have played a critical role in making significant 
changes to mental health reform. As the mental health crisis persists, it is incumbent upon 
Georgia’s county officials to continue partnering with state officials to devise solutions for all who 
call the Peach State home. ACCG is encouraging every county to adopt a resolution urging the 
Governor and General Assembly to continue efforts to reform and improve mental health services 
for the citizens of Georgia. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends this resolution.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution 23-16 





STAFF REPORT 
 

COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING: October 17, 2023 
 
DATE:  October 16, 2023  
TO:  McDuffie County Commission  
FROM:  David Crawley 
ISSUE: Consideration to approve the rezoning of property at 5538 Lincolnton Highway (Parcel 

00360003), from residential use to commercial use. 
 
CURRENT ZONE:  R2 (Medium Density Residential District) 
PROPOSED ZONE:  C2 (General Commercial District) 
ACREAGE:   1.53 acres 
    
BACKGROUND: Tom Gantt is requesting to rezone property on Lincolnton Highway for a package store 
with an attached studio apartment.    
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS:  

1. The property is surrounded by residential property on each side for the majority of Lincolnton 
Highway. Previously, the property was used for commercial purposes – apparently as a bar, but 
has been vacant for several years now.  

2. The closest similarly used property, Bob’s Café, is approximately a half-mile away.  
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. The Planning Board approves the variance request.   
2. The Planning Board denies the variance request.  

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: Planning Commissioners denied this request 5-1, with 
several members of the Raysville community – including the pastor of Raysville Baptist Church – 
expressing their opposition to the development during the meeting. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Commission deny the rezoning request. 
 
If the commission approves the request, the applicant must follow the requirements for site development, 
including DOT approved access and designated parking spaces. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Rezoning Application 
2. Tax Map 

 



�\\ 

�e. .. oL Li<# /3�o

,�- ,..mc
0

auff ie
,@ �t�,Gcorgo 

THOMSON-MCDUFFIE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

210 RAILROAD STREET, SUITE 1544 
THOMSON, GEORGIA 30824 PH {706} 595-5355 

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE/ APPEAL/ REVIEW 
(1) Variances. (2) Special exceptions. (3) Zoning changes. (4) Subdivision/planned

� I / .- .-<.-:5 

development review. (5) Changes to the land development code. (6) Changes to the future land use map. (7) Aduit entertainment 

review 

Type of Application to be reviewed by Commission: -i.o,.1 ,.tJb Ct--/ A-JJ{;t:., (TYPE ABOVE) 

Applications to the Planning Commission must be made in person by the property owner or authorized agent. Applic�tions mailed, 
faxed or delivered to the Planning Commission will not be accepted. 

Applications shall, if required, be accompanied by the following: 
A.) A plat of the subject property showing the names of the adjacent property owners. If a plat is not availc. '.lie, an aerial 

photograph must be substituted. * An attached survey/plat of the property was prepared by: 

Surveyor: � a,ltJ, Jv) pl&t= Dated:

B.) Proof of property ownership - warranty deed, security deed, or, if the property is being sold, an executed copy of the real 
estate sales contract and a deed "tie-in" to the seller of the property. 

C.) If required, a complete site development plan, including the location of buildings and other structure!>, <.2tbacks, a time 
schedule for the completion of the project, and any other information as may be required by the Planning Commissi '.lil. 

D.) Payment of application fee of$ 500.00 Date: Cash or Check No: 

If paying by check, make payable to "McDuffie County" or the "City of Thomson", based on the location ti the property. 

1.) The undersigned requests that one of the following should b
�

anted:
[ ) VARIANCE [ ) APPEAL (Of Director's Decision) [ REVIEW 

Relating To: 
1.) 
Ref: Ordinance Article Section Pg. __ 

2.) 
Ref: Ordinance Article Section Pg. __ 

3.) 
Ref: Ordinance Article Section Pg. __ 

2.) Have previous applications been submitted to the Planning Commission regarding this same property ·;tructure? 
[ } Yes [ V) No If "Yes", give dates, brief details, and action taken: 

. 



3.) Application is made pertaining to the following property/structure: 
[ v] Structure or [ ] Property address: '5"631.l C--t.t-lt.-01.A.J-r�� Mt.JfwMt 

. '7l-/ts AA.-:flJN, CA- 'J otJ 1-CJLocation: I 

Map/Parcel#: 

Total Area: 

oo 1Cc>ooo3 

(' S-3 .(acre) OfTotal Area, how much do you, as applicant, own: 
(See "B" above.) 

Property Zoned: �'1" - '&?-PA l petJ"'f1A-L-

4.) Current use: 
How many structures are located on this same property: 
Residences# I (Occupied by: -�,J�/A�---� 
Out Buildings# t> Use: _____________ _ 
Commercial # ____ _ Use: _____________ _ 
Other# _____ _ Use: ____________ _ 

5.) Purpose of application: 

Re..u � '+'rt oP€Nt-1'1 -rb Co v. ,,.__ uo kL ( rlt-f ID µ1}� 

- �w��Jf' CPPrt;..J£M£ �72�

�1\Jt>W /rfKt,qµt,,>S'f l MA,llfil,vt c.-t ✓iN(,, 4>&1�)

6.) [This question is applicable only for variances in dimensional requirements.] Are there any inherent physical 
characteristics associated with your property that would necessitate the consideration or granting of a 'Jariance? 

[ ] N/A [ ] No [ ] Yes 

If Yes, explain: ___________________________________ _ 

7.) [This question is applicable only for variances in dimensional requirements.] Since "mere inconvenience shall not 
constitute justification for the granting of a variance" (VIII, 2.2 (0)(6), what efforts (ex. purchase of additional property, 
relocation of structure, reduction in structure size, etc.) have been undertaken prior to the application for this variance 
which would have alleviated the necessity of a variance. [ ] N/A 
Explain:----------------------------------------

8.) [This question is applicable only for special exception or other Board reviews.] List below those nonconformities 
to any special exception or conditional review under review by this application. [ ] N/A 
Explain: 

8.5.) Is this a Development of Regional Impact? [ ] Yes [vf No 



9.) Title information 
Agent: ;o·Pl '--"!'N ff

   Address: 

  

   

10.) Conflict of Interest: 

Owner: --roe:; t-foe-I>, �b>, ,t.l-C, 

Address: 
'5 A Mf;

Phone:: ___ __,,_::::::::==----------

Email: _________________ _ 

A.) Does any local government official or member of his/her family have a financial interest in the subject property? 
(and/or) ,-.Jo 

B.) Has the applicant (whether authorized agent or property owner) made campaign contributions in the aggregate of 
$250 or more within the last two years to any local government official. Nfl 

Answer: [\/( No (To Both) 
[ ] Yes (To Either) - Attach separate sheet giving details. 

As witnessed by applicant's/agent's signature (below), applicant/agent does hereby agree to, and fully understands 
that: 

x�1.) The submitting of false information by any means to the Planning Commission shall constitute grounds for
denial of the variance/appeal and revocation of any applicable permits.

x�2.) Should the variance /appeal be denied, or conditionally approved, the applicant has a right to appeal to the
Thomson City Council/McDuffie County Board of Commissioners at their next regular meeting the second Tuesday
following the Planning Commission meeting. Appeals of decisions of the Board of Commissioners may be appealed to
the Superior Court of McDuffie County.

x � 3.) Any contact by the applicant, related party or person with any member of the Planning Commission Board
c�ning any aspect of this variance application prior to the hearing will be considered as prejudicial to his or her
application. Intentional disregard of this restriction may result in automatic denied of the application.

X �4.) Failure by the applicant (or suitable representative) to attend the Planning Commission Board meeting at
whidfhis/her application is considered shall constitute grounds for recommending denial of the application.

I HEREBY WARRANT AS WITNESSED BY MY SIGNATURE BELOW THAT, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, All OF THE 
STATEMENTS CONTAINED HEREIN, OR SUBMITTED WITH THIS APPLICATION, ARE TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY 

�
AT I FULLY UNDERSTAND ALL STATEMENTS CONTAIN�D IN THIS APPLICATION.

Date: g 'l'1 ( 'l-o½
(Applicant's Signature) 

1'1M�IA1' t"t.M� 

---rT<)C. L-11>L.01.,J,. ( U-l,,

Date: ____________ _ 
(Applicant's Signature) 

Planning Commission Meeting: Date: ___________ _ 

City Council/County Board of Commissioners Meeting: Date: ___________ _ 

...._v_"v \ '� "-



Please record and return 
Knox and Swan 
Attorneys al Law 
Post Office Box 539 
Thomson, Georgia 30824 
(706) 595-1841 

STATE OF GEORGIA 
COUNTY OF McDUFFIE 

WARRANTY DEED 

II 1111 11111 I U IHH 111111111111 ill 
Deed Doc '\Jill /v'ft>/7 

Recorded 09/28/2022 09:JOAM 
Ge.it.el.a Tl'an;d"e fu !'aid : Sl!i.S. 00 

C1111-.i., H. Ch�:,f}.:i:n 

Clclc :;:up'lia· Cwrt, l,.u:£'1ll'Cit- Crun1.y, G-:1. 

Bk 00725 Pg 0267-0269 

THIS INDENTURE, made this di.S�ay of September, 2022, between FAYE 

HULL, of the State of Georgia, of the first part, and TDG HOLDINGS, LLC, a Georgia

limited liability company, of the second part, 

WITNESSETH THAT 

The said party of the first part, for and in consideration of the sum of TEN 

DOLLARS ($10.00) AND OTHER VALUABLE CONSIDERATIONS, in hand paid, at 

and before the sealing and delivery of these presents, the receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed, and by these presents does 

grant, bargain, sell and convey unto the said party of the second part, its successors and 

assigns, the following described property, to-wit: 

TRACTI 

ALL that lot or parcel ofland, with improvements thereon, situate, lying and being 
in the 132nd District G.M., McDuffie County, Georgia, containing one (1) acre of land, 
more or less, same being more definitely described as the small lot located in the northeast 
comer of large plat, lying just west of State Highway No. 43, as shown by plat thereof, 

https:/lsearch .gsccca.org/lmaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=82107017 &key1 = 725&key2=267 &cou nty=97 &countyname=MCDUFFIE&userid=142980&ap... 1 /2 



made by W.T. Flu�er, dated February 21, 1963, copy being recorded in Plat Book D at 
page 121 in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court of McDuffie County, Georgia. Said 
lot is bounded northeast by road leading northeast by road leading northwest from Highway 
No. 43; east by Highway No. 43; south and west by lands previously conveyed to John 
David Russell and Mildred A. Russell, same being a part of the Gibson Estate. 

Said property is conveyed subject to any and all applicable covenants, easements, 
reservations and restrictions of record. 

Said property is known as Map 0036, Parcel 009 on the present tax mapping system 
of the McDuffie County Assessor's Office and is more commonly known as 5579 
Lincolnton Road. 

TRACT II 

ALL that tract or parcel of land, together with improvements thereon, situate, lying 
and being in the 132nd District, G.M., of McDuffie County, Georgia, about them (10) miles 
northeast of Thomson, Georgia, and fronting 274 feet on the east side of Georgia Highway 
No. 43, containing 0.876 ofan acre, including the store building located thereon, known as 
Flat Rock Grocery, said tract or parcel ofland known as Lot No. 1 according to a certain 
survey made by L.C. Aldred, Surveyor, a copy of which said plat of survey is of record in 
the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court of McDuffie County, Georgia, in Plat Book Kat 
page 43 and to which said plat of survey and the official record thereof reference is hereby 
had in aid of and for a more full, complete, and accurate description of the tract or parcel 
ofland herein and hereby described and conveyed. with respect to metes, bounds. courses, 
distances and dimensions; said plat of survey and the official record thereof, by this 
reference, being hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 

Said property is conveyed subject to any and all applicable covenants, easements, 
reservations and restrictions of record. 

Said property is known as a portion of Map 0036, Parcel 003 on the present tax 
mapping system of the McDuffie County Assessor's Office. 

TRACT III 

ALL that tract, lot or parcel of land situate, lying and being in the 132nd District, 
G.M., McDuffie County, Georgia, containing 0.658 of an acre, and being designated as Lot
No. 2 as shown on a plat of survey by L.C. Aldred, Surveyor, dated April 26, 1971, a copy
of said plat being recorded in Plat Book Kat page 43 in the Office of the Clerk of Superior
Court of McDuffie County, Georgia, and to which said plat of survey and the official record
thereof reference is hereby had in aid of and for a more full, complete and accurate
description of the tract or parcel of land herein and hereby described and conveyed, with
respect to metes, bounds, courses, distances and dimensions; said plat of survey and the
official record thereof, by this reference, being hereby incorporated herein and made a part
hereof.



Said property is conveyed subject to any and all applicable covenants, easements,
reservations and restrictions ofrecord. 

Said property is lrnown as a portion of Map 0036, Parcel 003 on the present tax
mapping system of the McDuffie County Assessor's Office.

Tracts I, II and III are the same property conveyed from Steve Williams to Faye
Hull by Quitclaim Deed dated May 27, 2020 and recorded in Deed Book 687 at pages 622-
623, McDuffie County Clerk's Office.

TO HA VE AND TO HOLI� the said tract or parcel of land, with all and singular

the rights, members and appurtenances thereof, to the same being, belonging, or in anywise

appertaining, to the only proper use, benefit and behoof of the said party of the second part,

its successors and assigns, forever, in Fee Simple.

AND THE SAID party of the first part, for her heirs and assigns, will warrant and

forever defend the right and title to the above�described property, unto the said party of the

second part, its successors and assigns, against the claims of all persons whomsoever.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the party of the first part has hereunto set her hand and

seal, the day and year above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered in the
presence of: 

£� �wt;: 14tvt/ lh, 

�� 
ot uh 1

(SEAL)

httnc•//c-o,:srrh ,..,..,..,..,..,.. ........... 11_,_ __ : __ ,1 ,.,..,. ... ,., ,, 

TWANSHELLA SATCHER 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

Clayton County 
State of Georgia 

My Comm. Expires Oct. 19, 2023 

Q � (1(., & Plu1t 
�
FAYEt1 



3:.:.�: 

• :.. �l,e

Enclosed Porch 
(Dirt Floor) 

5550 Lincolnton�. 

Store and Apt Remodel 

w 

= · 

�: 

. -· . . 

I 

I 

Bath 

i 
6" �----

Studio Apt 

·10·, 
.\

<:'J j 
- i

\!J- . 
1

Kitchen �· 

. - . 

•• 
�� 

/o 

_:,r�w:.;.g: 

l 

Sca.:.1=: 
1/�":1'0"

• 
, 

. 

i 

Storage Room 

BEFORE 

c Bath t--------
#1 

c) 
_ _,, 

Bath 

#2 
Screened in ?orch 
(Dirt Floor 

i- 0\ - - -

-.?·rv:e.::�: I ::r .. -..::: I ��:>::.cs: 

GAN'l''l' 

C'�t:.�! Re;. .. : 
8/21/23 



c,...__ 

------------------.. -- ----- -- l---- ---- ---- -----

--,-------·· 

----+--

6 
W/D 
...

I Bath 
I 

I I i 'O 
--" J_� 

I 
i 
I 

. t . -
' 

� Stujio Apt AFfrER 
I � 

: 

.. fo\.: 
·I 

�1 C Kitchenett -

/" 

'!) Storage Room

1C 1 � 
I t V•---------------� 

Storefront I .
.

i

C\Bath 
--1#1 

' l I -•••-••·-•--��--••--u 

Office 

I i I It,\ I ----�------ :I -- ____.!_ 



X 
Q) 

-0 
..s 
Q) 
Ol "' 
.§ 

e> 
0 

< 
(.) 
(.) 
(.) 
Cl) 
C) 

'-

u z 
.. 

PRCPAAE.0 , FOA. 

ROBERT W, HARRISOl,J 

•c.""'-• - �� • �0 . ,�,1 
o "'\ o�• ,..,.,., 

'"" '''"" 
. ,., ... , 

_ ,r1c1.0 � ... a ... ..-, �o,cv...- ....,,,.w.,.,.,, 
w ,. ac'-'- c."" ll "� .. •�&� 

ti ,c. 

... r;,t':, I{ 

---, 

( .. 
!,�

I 
I 

. L,r I 
----i 

·•. , .. 

" 
So ;. 

..• 

t---• 
r;, 

..... ,J 

lot t O,B 7� _,,c. L.•� .a. O.(,S"J>�� 
-r-e., /. 5 3,1. "9, 

� '
� 
t � 

� 
.., 

"'" 

N 

... 

!I> • 

.,.. -...

J C1,-(,·,L
,/ 

f/, ,._ l!. l!�,';, ,Pl•� rcf,,.c..s.,.�., ,c.-, «c.&.-/ 
Stirn

}
' .,,.,,t,/,c ./,

7 
e"�c t.-,e/..,.. J,", ,. .,_/ Cu-rt",:._, a. /, S",H1.. 

�c,,.� f-,,,..c.� � T /.,,,,.J I(,.,, _ _, 4, 'lf.lt c. ";:::/4 t K.c.� 

.St-,,,.,"/# r ./,...,_ 4>t'.4,;- /..., .,.✓., .of M�.s. C,4,..,Jt,.:. c 

/?. G✓ O,,,,, /,oe,,,C,<f ✓� r-4 e I.J2 '!. -' /"'1;.£)
1 

M-c419':C 

c.,,mf
y

, c,..,,.�1,-.... S< ./£ 1::.�e· -4,,P,-,·12,:_ 11'7/ 
� e. tZe,,&,_J, s,,,v£,✓ -� 

G-., . C�, 'If ,v., C s.s 

w:r l'!,;!;',1' 1'1'1' I' 1:1 'I 'I' I 'l'I:}' 1'1 'I 'l'l;J 'l'l'I 'l'l�''T'T'l'l 'l.;J 

tmlwll.111111111,,,, iliyhdl.!J-iLlllwJJJ.iL ulu1lruw.wl,llu1b,ultLLWJ.W1J 

.) ' 
"'-'.... ; :: .��� (, 

: .L.'{...1_ .... �- .J.� 
• ': <(t

0

!<':. •-.; 

43 

� 

Cl 

f 
:,-
: 
,\ 

S' 

� 
I 
l 

co 
N 
II 
-0 
·a.
a. "' 

olS 
N 
,.._ 
"' 
v "' 
II 
,, 

-�1/1 
:::, 

olS 
UJ 
ii: 
LL 
:::) 
0 
(.) 
�
II 
Q) 
E"'
C 
>, 
i: 
:::, 
8
oil 
,.._ 
C1l 
II 

?
:::, 

8
olS 
(") 
v 
II 

N 
>, 
Q) .:,< 

olS .:,< 
II 
>, 
�
('• 
X 
a. 
1/1 
<O 

i 
� 
..J 
� 
f
:r: 
o, 
C 

"c, "' 
.§ 
o, 
0 

u 
u 
en 
Ol 
.r:. 
�"'
Q) 
:!g 
i,; 
C. 
f 



9/25/23, 4:22 PM qPublic.net - McDuffie County, GA - Report: 00360003

https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=1165340237&KeyValue=00360003 1/3

Would you like to submit an appeal to the Board of Assessors? Click Here for more information.

Appeal to Board of Assessors

Parcel Number 00360003
Location Address 5538 LINCOLNTON HWY
Legal Description 5538 LINCOLNTON HWY NE

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)
Class R4-Residential

(Note: This is for tax purposes only. Not to be used for zoning.)
Zoning R2
Tax District County (District 01)
Millage Rate 28.49
Acres 1.53
Homestead Exemption No (S0)
Landlot/District N/A

View Map

TDG HOLDINGS LLC
PO BOX 391
THOMSON, GA 30824

Type Description Calculation Method Soil Productivity Acres

RUR Small Tract Rural 1 1.53

Style 1 Family (Detached)
Heated Square Feet 2020
Interior Walls Finished
Exterior Walls Concrete Block
Foundation Slab
Attic Square Feet 0 
Basement Square Feet 0 
Year Built 1965
Roof Type Other
Flooring Type Finished
Heating Type No Heat/Sp Htr
Number Of Rooms 5
Number Of Bedrooms 2
Number Of Full Bathrooms 2
Number Of Half Bathrooms 0
Number Of Plumbing Extras 5
Value $63,917
Condition Fair
House Address 5538 LINCOLNTON

Description Year Built Dimensions/Units Identical Units Value

Fire Fee 2022 0x0 / 0 10577 $0

Site Value (C) 2020 0x0 / 1 0 $2,500

No Value: Accessory Bldg/Shed 2000 10x14 / 0 2 $0

Sale Date Deed Book / Page Plat Book / Page Sale Price Reason Grantor Grantee

9/23/2022 725 267 K 43 $195,000 Multi-Parcel Arms Length HULL FAYE TDG HOLDINGS LLC

5/27/2020 687 622 K 43 $0 Deed of Gift WILLIAMS STEVE HULL FAYE

10/2/2013 612 297 K 43 $115,000 Fair Market - Improved BLANKO EDWARD M WILLIAMS STEVE

11/11/1980 117 10 K 43 $0 Unquali�ed Sale BLANKO EDWARD M

Online Appeal

Summary

Owner

Rural Land

Residential Improvement Information

Accessory Information

Sales

McDuf�e County, GA

https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/FileData/McduffieCountyGA/Appeals/Templates/Instructions.pdf
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=1&PageID=0&Q=88052947&KeyValue=00360003
javascript:__doPostBack('ctlBodyPane$ctl02$ctl01$lnkOwnerName$lnkSearch','')
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=88052947&KeyValue=00360003
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=88052947&KeyValue=00360003
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=507208984&KeyValue=00360003
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=507208984&KeyValue=00360003
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=1277736912&KeyValue=00360003
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=1577405341&KeyValue=00360003
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=237971218&KeyValue=00360003


9/25/23, 4:22 PM qPublic.net - McDuffie County, GA - Report: 00360003

https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=1165340237&KeyValue=00360003 2/3

    2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

  Previous Value $52,399 $42,599 $62,622 $62,622 $62,622

  Land Value $8,209 $8,209 $7,970 $6,641 $6,641

+ Improvement Value $63,917 $41,690 $32,129 $53,711 $53,711

+ Accessory Value $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,270 $2,270

= Current Value $74,626 $52,399 $42,599 $62,622 $62,622

Valuation

Photos

Sketches

https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=237971218&KeyValue=00360003
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=2034082974&KeyValue=00360003
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=2034082974&KeyValue=00360003


9/25/23, 4:22 PM qPublic.net - McDuffie County, GA - Report: 00360003

https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/Application.aspx?AppID=712&LayerID=11417&PageTypeID=4&PageID=4890&Q=1165340237&KeyValue=00360003 3/3

No data available for the following modules: Land, Conservation Use Rural Land, Commercial Improvement Information, Mobile Homes, Prebill Mobile Homes, Permits.

The McDuf�e County Assessor makes every effort to produce the most accurate information
possible. No warranties, expressed or implied are provided for the data herein, its use or
interpretation. The assessment information is from the last certi�ed tax roll. All other data is
subject to change.
|  User Privacy Policy |  GDPR Privacy Notice
Last Data Upload: 9/25/2023, 6:12:12 AM

Contact Us Developed by

https://www.schneidergis.com/privacypolicy
https://www.schneidergis.com/gdprprivacynotice
https://qpublic.schneidercorp.com/LastUpdated.aspx?BaseDoc=McduffieCountyGA&AppID=712
http://schneidergis.com/
http://schneidergis.com/




STAFF REPORT 
 

COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING: October 17, 2023 
 
DATE:  October 16, 2023  
TO:  McDuffie County Commission  
FROM:  David Crawley 
ISSUE: Consideration to approve a variance of the distance requirements within O.C.G.A. § 16-

12-215 to allow Barney’s Pharmacy to dispense medical cannabis less than 1,000 feet 
from a church, 1682 Washington Road, Parcel Number 0T08007 

 
CURRENT ZONE:  C2 (General Commercial District) 
PROPOSED ZONE:  No Change 
ACREAGE:   1.21 acres 
    
BACKGROUND: Barney’s Pharmacy requests a variance for the reduction in the minimum distance 
requirements outlined within O.C.G.A. § 16-12-215 for the dispensing of medical cannabis.  The subject 
code section requires a minimum distance of 1,000 feet from the property boundary dispensing location 
to the property boundary of a church.  The distance between Barney’s and the property boundary of 
Young Memorial UMC is approximately 110 feet.   
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS:  

1. The purpose of the variance request is to reduce the minimum distance requirements for the 
dispensing medical cannabis.  

2. A previous request in the City of Thomson that was within the distance requirements of a school 
was approved by both the Planning Commission and City Council.  
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. The Commission approves the variance request.   
2. The Commission denies the variance request.  

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: Planning Commissioners approved this request 5-1, with 
no opposition from audience members. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends to the Commission to approve the variance request. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Variance Application 
2. Tax Map 
3. OCGA text related to distance 
4. Map showing measured distance 

 





























McDuf�e County, GA

Developed by

Parcel ID 0T080007
Class Code Residential
Taxing District County
Acres 1.21

Owner MNOG PROPERTIES LLC  
3686 WHEELER RD  
AUGUSTA, GA 30909

Physical Address 1682 WASHINGTON RD
Assessed Value Value $1344152

Last 2 Sales
Date Price Reason Qual
11/6/2020 $150000 FM Q
10/28/2020 0 QC U

(Note: Not to be used on legal documents)

Date created: 9/8/2023 

Last Data Uploaded: 9/8/2023 6:26:09 AM

295 ft

Overview

Legend 

Parcels

Roads
























































































	BOC Meeting Agenda October 17 2023
	BOC WS Minutes October 2, 2023
	BOC Regular Session Minutes 10.04.2023
	Staff Report CSRA ARPA Broadband 10.17.2023
	Contractual Agreement ARPA Broadband McDuffie 10.17.2023
	SECTION 1 – SCOPE OF SERVICES
	SECTION 2 - COMPENSATION
	SECTION 4 - TERMINATION FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR AND/OR RC
	SECTION 9 - ACCEPTANCE OF CONTRACT AND TERMS

	DRUG AND SMOKE-FREE WORKPLACE

	Staff Report RFQ Amp and Park Scorecard 10.17.2023
	McDuffie County RFQ Summary with Score 10.17.2023
	Sheet1

	Staff Report Proclamation Georgia Military Veteran's HOF 10.17.2023
	Proclamation Georgia Military Veterans Hall of Fame
	Proclamation Georgia Military Veterans Hall of Fame 10.17.2023
	Staff Report Resolution 23-16 ACCG Mental Health 10.17.2023
	Resolution 23-16 ACCG Mental Health 10.17.2023
	Planning Board Lincolnton Highway
	Planning Board Barney's Pharmacy
	September Budget Report 10.17.2023
	September Financial Report - 10.17.2023



